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Dear Shareholders
On behalf of the Board of Directors I express my deep thanks for the support and trust extended to us during the restructure
period. I am pleased to present the annual report for the financial year 2011, KFIC’s operational results, its financial position, and
the efforts carried out during the year to finalize KFIC’s debt restructuring plan. These efforts have finally led to implementation
of KFIC’s restructure plan in the first quarter of 2012 making KFIC the first investment company to successfully execute its debt
restructure plan in full.

Macroeconomic Environment
The 2008 global financial crisis which triggered global economic slowdown and deleveraging has continued. The low growth
global economic environment is expected to persist in the coming years. The renewed expectation of sizeable slowdown in the
euro zone area, fragile economic recovery of US & loss of AAA credit rating for US treasuries, and slowdown in China’s economy
along with geopolitical tensions in the Middle East during 2011 continue to present challenging economic and business
environment.
Kuwait’s GDP growth is expected to be around 5.7% during 2011; and could possibly increase on the back of sustained higher
fuel price trends expected in 2012. Total bank credit increased by 1.6%; credit growth to residents remained stagnant; though
consumer (household) lending increased by 9.5%; and continues to increase in 2012 also. Personal facilities (excluding loans to
purchase securities) increased by 12.1% during first quarter of 2012. In 2011 M2 growth was subdued; though in the first quarter of
2012 M2 supply has expanded by 4.2%.This bodes well for financing services activity in general and financing services activities
at KFIC in particular.
Total real estate sales returned to strong levels during 2011. The growth was led by residential and investment sectors. During
the first quarter of 2012 the real estate sales amounted to KD 246 million with sustained growth in residential and investment
sectors.
During 2011 annual KSE traded value was around KD 6.3 billion, 83.6% lower than 2007 traded value of KD 38.4 billion. During
the first four months of 2012, the KSE index has registered a gain of 9.5%; and volumes have increased by 13% compared with
the same period in 2011.

CHAIRMAN MESSAGE

KFIC, even during the challenging economic environment continued to service its debts as per the inter creditor agreement
signed with the creditor banks’ in the beginning of 2010, wherein KFIC paid KD 25.7 million approximately during the years 2010
and 2011 towards outstanding debt and KD 13 million approximately towards interest payments. The timely service of debt
demonstrated KFIC’s commitment towards its creditors, reinforced credibility of KFIC’s franchise, and encouraged the creditors
along with the major shareholders to move forward with the debt restructure plan.
KFIC started discussions with the creditors after the new Chief Executive Officer took the reins in the third quarter of year
2010. KFIC’s executive management witnessed changes. The team conducted a detailed review of KFIC’s business model, its
profitability and its capital structure and concluded that to continue KFIC’s business operations in a sustainable manner for the
benefit of all stakeholders including the creditors, and the shareholders it was imperative to negotiate a new debt restructure
plan. Accordingly, a new debt restructure plan was presented for the outstanding debt of KD 121 million approximately to the
creditor banks’. The debt restructure plan was accompanied with a new business model and an asset restructure plan that were
consistent with the market conditions and management restructuring plan to enable implementation of the new business
model.
In the first quarter of 2012, KFIC’s debt restructure plan was implemented and the necessary procedures to complete KFIC’s
capital increase by KD 65.174 million approximately in cash were finalized. The capital increase comprised of additional equity
infusion of KD 50 million approximately by new shareholders and KD 15.174 million approximately by the existing shareholders,
accordingly KFIC’s paid up capital increased to KD 99.3 million approximately. The capital increase resulted in a reduction of
outstanding debt from KD 121 million approximately to KD 40.6 million approximately and the remaining outstanding debt
was rescheduled over a period of five years payable in quarterly instalments. KFIC had a negative equity of KD 44.6 million
approximately prior to the restructure that was converted into positive equity of KD 34.4 million approximately after the debt
restructure plan was implemented. KFIC has become the first investment company in Kuwait to successfully complete its debt
restructure, and it is well poised to implement the operational and asset restructuring.
In the second half of 2010, KFIC embarked on a restructure exercise spearhead by its new Executive Management. The restructure
was based on a multi-pronged approach involving operational restructuring, detailed asset review and restructuring, and capital
restructuring. The overarching objectives of the restructure were to reflect the assets at a fair value, deleverage to a debt level
that can be sustained, entail strategic cost reduction, strengthen the distinctive business model and revenue streams of KFIC in
context of changing global and regional economic environment, and comply with applicable regulatory guidelines.

The Investment and Finance sector in Kuwait has been adversely affected since 2008.Liquidity dried up for the private sector,
asset values significantly declined across several asset categories, investors sought huge discounts and exit periods extended.
KFIC was not an exception to this being engaged in the financial services industry. During 2008 till 2011 it witnessed shrinkage
in the revenues and decline in its asset values; accordingly it was necessary to restructure KFIC’s business model and its capital
structure.

The distinctiveness of KFIC’s business model compared with other investment companies hinges on the cash generating
business lines namely financing services, and financial brokerage operations, that allows it to partially offset earnings volatility
arising from investment portfolios and related activities.

KFIC’s Debt Restructure

As of 31st December 2011, KFIC has cash and cash equivalents of KD 10.7 million approximately representing 13.3% of its total
assets and 26.3% of its debts (after the debt restructure) amounting to KD 40.6 million approximately. This reflects KFIC’s strong
financial position. KFIC will continue its businesses as per the business plan accompanied with the debt restructure plan to
generate a sustainable rate of return on investments in financial instruments and in real estate with low level of risks.

The approval of creditor banks’ on the restructure plan proposed by KFIC, as well as the consent of KFIC’s major shareholders to
subscribe in the capital increase proposed as per the restructure plan underscores confidence of all the stakeholders in KFIC’s
ability to pursue sustainable business operations.
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Financial Year 2011 Results
KFIC incurred losses of KD 8.2 million approximately during 2011 compared with losses of KD 69.4 million approximately in
2010 with a decrease in losses of KD 61.2 million approximately. The losses during 2011 were mainly due to the finance cost
of KD 6 million approximately that KFIC continued to bear for the purpose of servicing the debt amounting to KD 132 million
approximately at the start of the year 2011 and KD 120.3 million approximately by the end of year 2011 before finalizing the
debt restructure and an amount of KD 3.2 million approximately represents losses resulting from a decline in KFIC’s investment
portfolio that had to be recorded as per the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.
In these difficult economic conditions, KFIC has been able to continue its core business and realize profit from its core activities,
Financing Services, Asset under Management and Brokerage. Following is KFIC’s segment results for 2011 compared with 2010:

2011

Revenues
Allocated Expenses

Finance

Asset
Management

Investment
& Corporate
Finance

KFIC ME
Private Equity
Fund

Brokerage &
TOL Services

2,408,884
(1,085,723)
1,323,161

1,065,950
(1,017,874)
48,076

(2,016,528)
(1,011,955)
(3,028,483)

(1,213,187)
(14,818)
(1,228,005)

1,756,051
(1,202,813)
553,238

Revenues
Allocated Expenses

2011

Payroll costs ............................................................................................................................................................
Finance costs ........................................................................................................................................................
Depreciation and amortization ...................................................................................................
Other operating expenses .................................................................................................................

1,765,555
5,918,665
324,464
2,269,893
10,278,577

2010

2,829,094
6,931,330
516,442
3,406,218
13,683,084

2009

3,754,776
8,794,500
525,250
2,584,463
15,658,989

KFIC will continue its efforts to further reduce its operating expenses to an optimum level consistent with the its volume of
business, thus positively affecting its financial results going forward.

Following is the summary of segment results:

Finance Cost
Net Loss

2010

Total

Management continued its efforts to reduce the operating expenses through operational restructure. KFIC has reduced its
operating expenses during 2010 and 2011. The operating expenses further decreased by 25% approximately in 2011 compared
with 2010 on the back of operational restructuring at all business segments and negotiation of reduced interest rates with the
creditors. The trend of operational expenses over 2009 to 2011 is presented below:

Finance

Asset
Management

Investment
& Corporate
Finance

KFIC ME
Private Equity
Fund

Brokerage &
TOL Services

4,075,522
(8,915,696)
(4,840,174)

912,392
(1,625,158)
(712,766)

(11,581,465)
(21,062,342)
(32,643,807)

(18,594,258)
(5,020,860)
(23,615,118)

2,033,549
(2,657,836)
(624,287)

2,001,170
(4,333,183)
(2,332,013)
(5,918,665)
(8,250,678)

Total

Finance Division
Financing portfolio has declined from KD 44.4 million approximately as of 31st December 2010 to KD 31.1 million approximately
as of 31st December 2011;a decline of 30% approximately. This was mainly due to KFIC’s efforts to collect in order to repay the
loans and its related interest amounting to KD 17.3 million approximately in year 2011. Even though the finance revenues
decreased from KD 4.1 million approximately in 2010 to KD 2.4 million in 2011, as the size of the finance portfolio decreased,
the finance segment has realized profit of KD 1.3 million approximately in 2011. This profit was mainly due to the decrease in
the provision of the non performing loans. KFIC’s plan in this segment is to continue its collaborating efforts to settle the non
performing loans to keep a sustainable level of portfolio size sufficient to cover the operating expenses, and to achieve a rate of
return above the cost of capital through expansion in consumer finance sector.

Asset Management Division

Finance Cost
Net Loss

14

(23,154,260)
(39,281,892)
(62,436,152)
(6,931,330)
(69,367,482)

The difficult circumstances that Asset Management business is facing in the State of Kuwait and in the region resulted in decrease
assets under management from KD 343 million approximately in 2010 to KD 222 million approximately in 2011. However,
despite the decrease in assets under management KFIC Asset Management Division (AMD) has been able to keep acceptable
level of revenues amounting to KD 1.06 million approximately in 2011 compared to KD 0.9 million approximately in 2010. The
decrease in assets under management was mainly due to the decrease in the assets’ value as share prices declined, and due to
the fact that clients liquidated portion from their assets under management to settle their liabilities. As part of KFIC’s operational
restructuring plan for this segment, KFIC is planning to offer new products to its clients.
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I would like to extend deep thanks to CMA for the constructive approach extended to KFIC during the capital increase process
and its decree to not delist KFIC shares which had a positive effect on preserving KFIC shareholders’ economic interests.

KFIC Financial Brokerage (KFICB) a subsidiary of KFIC, has a leading rank among the 14 financial brokerage companies in Kuwait.
Even though, brokerage revenues declined in 2010 from KD 2 million approximately to KD 865 thousands approximately in
2011; a decline of 58% primarily due to the decline in trading volume in KSE ( from KD 38.4 billion approximately in 2007 to
KD 6.3 billion approximately in 2011). KFICB has kept its leading ranking among the financial brokerage companies. KFICB has
contributed in enhancing KFIC’s revenues in 2011 with an amount of KD 553 thousands approximately, resulting from collections
of bad debts that were written off in previous years.
During 2011, as part of KFICB’s plan to reduce operating expenses and increase process efficiencies the trading platform was
changed from GBS to DirectFN. KFICB was the first financial brokerage company in Kuwait to have a trading system compatible
with the new trading system at KSE (NASDAQ OMX).

At the end, I would like to thank KFIC’s Executive Management for their efforts to negotiate and conclude the debt restructure
plan, and appreciate their continued efforts to implement the restructure plan.
I would like to express gratitude on behalf of KFIC’s Board of Directors, employees and myself to all shareholders for the trust and
confidence reposed in KFIC Board of Directors and Executive Management.
I would also like to thank the regulatory authorities especially the Central Bank of Kuwait (CBK) and the CMA for the cooperation
and constructive approach extended during KFIC’s efforts to conclude and execute the debt restructure.
Saleh Y. AlHomaizi
Chairman

The financial brokerage and online equity trading services are distinguishing offerings extended by KFIC, especially given that
KFIC was among the first companies that offered pan GCC online equity trading services in Kuwait in 2005.

Investment & Corporate Finance Division
Still the consequences and negative effects of the financial crisis have its impacts on the investment environment in terms of the
decline in asset values and extended exit horizons. KFIC did not exit from its direct investments in 2011, barring certain quoted
investments amounting to KD 3 million approximately that were liquidated to settle debt. This has resulted in realized loss of KD
432 thousands approximately. The unrealized losses for the unquoted investments amounted to KD 3.2 million approximately in
2011 compared with KD 27.8 million approximately in 2010. KFIC has a plan to exit from its direct investments and the KFIC ME
Private Equity Fund during 2012 till 2015. Going forward the Division’s revenue model will focus on recurring income from fee
generating activities and yielding investments. The Division will offer tailored solutions, advisory services and niche products to
its clients in Kuwait and clients of its collaborative partners in the GCC.

Corporate Governance
During the year, KFIC carried out a comprehensive review of its internal policies and procedures for all business activities to
ensure that the governance framework as well as the policies and procedures are in compliance with the executive regulations
of the Capital Market Authority (‘CMA’) Law and best practices. In order to achieve this, KFIC appointed one of the big four
consulting firms to review the governance practices, organization structure and policies & procedures, to identify gaps and to
recommend mitigating solutions. The policies and procedures were amended and presented to the CMA to register KFIC with
CMA on 8 March 2012 before the dead line stipulated by CMA - 12 March 2012.

Resumption of trading of KFIC shares on KSE
Since KFIC’s share has been suspended from trading on KSE from 1st April 2011, the main concern for both the Executive
Management and the Board of Directors was to take all the necessary actions to finalize the restructure and effect the capital
increase in the stipulated timeframe so that trading of KFIC’s shares resumes on the KSE. On 12th April 2012, the CMA issued a
decree not to delist KFIC shares from KSE and advised KFIC and KSE to undertake necessary procedures for resumption of trading
of KFIC shares.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group as of 31
December 2011, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated financial
statements, together with the contents of the report of the Board of Directors relating to these financial statements, are in accordance
therewith. We further report that we obtained the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and
that the consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Commercial Companies Law of 1960,
as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, no violations of provision of the Commercial Companies Law of 1960, as amended, or of the Parent Company’s
Articles of Association have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2011 that might have had a material effect on the business
of the Group or on its consolidated financial position. We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware
of any material violations of the provisions of Law No. 32 of 1968, as amended, concerning currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and the
organization of banking business, and its related regulations, during the year ended 31 December 2011.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Kuwait Finance and Investment Company KSCC, (“the Parent
Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Parent Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait for financial institutions regulated
by the Central Bank of Kuwait, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Bader A. Al-Wazzan

Dr. Saud Al-Humaidi

Deloitte & Touche
AlFahad, AlWazzan and Co.
License No. 62A

License No. 51A
Al-Humaidi & Partners
Independent Member of
Baker Tilly International

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2011

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinars

Assets

Cash at banks .............................................................................................................................................................................................
Investments at fair value through profit or loss ...........................................................................................
Finance receivables ............................................................................................................................................................................
Investments available for sale ..............................................................................................................................................
Investments in associates ..........................................................................................................................................................
Other assets .................................................................................................................................................................................................
Property and equipment ............................................................................................................................................................
Intangible assets ....................................................................................................................................................................................

Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Liabilities

Borrowings ....................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other liabilities .........................................................................................................................................................................................

All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinars

Note

2011

2010

6
7
8
9
10
11

10,721,280
7,889,133
31,126,424
11,760,954
8,499,347
1,202,385
436,444
9,057,299
80,693,266

10,154,474
8,560,228
44,448,216
18,256,738
8,765,472
1,671,085
863,249
9,057,299
101,776,761

12

13
14

120,306,260
2,026,804
122,333,064

131,759,862
2,128,355
133,888,217

15.1
15.4

34,147,801
(10,945,477)
(565,037)
1,209,312
130,781
(68,607,974)
(44,630,594)
2,990,796
(41,639,798)
80,693,266

34,147,801
(10,945,477)
578,719
1,295,892
130,781
(60,719,236)
(35,511,520)
3,400,064
(32,111,456)
101,776,761

Equity

Equity attributable to the Parent Company’s shareholders:
Share capital ................................................................................................................................................................................................
Treasury shares .........................................................................................................................................................................................
Change in fair value reserve ...................................................................................................................................................
Foreign currency translation reserve ..........................................................................................................................
Equity transactions reserve .....................................................................................................................................................
Accumulated losses ..........................................................................................................................................................................
Non controlling interests ............................................................................................................................................................
Total equity ...................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total liabilities and equity

The attached notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Abdul Moghni Abdullah
Al Abdul Moghni

Note

2011

2010

16
10

2,365,975
1,431,950
865,143
(2,805,693)
(538,460)
(9,557)
691,812
2,001,170

4,140,363
1,175,128
2,067,853
(26,473,983)
(3,410,511)
(724,563)
71,453
(23,154,260)

Net loss for the year

5,918,665
1,765,555
324,464
2,269,893
(223,703)
196,974
10,251,848
(8,250,678)

6,931,330
2,829,094
516,442
3,406,218
7,348,139
1,374,205
10,135,785
13,672,009
46,213,222
(69,367,482)

Net loss for the year
Losses per share (fils)

(7,888,738)
(361,940)
(8,250,678)
(25.16)

(60,719,236)
(8,648,246)
(69,367,482)
(193.67)

Revenues

Finance income ..........................................................................................................................................................................................
Management and advisory fees ...........................................................................................................................................
Brokerage commission .....................................................................................................................................................................
Investment losses ....................................................................................................................................................................................
Group’s share in associates’ results ...................................................................................................................................
Foreign currency losses ....................................................................................................................................................................
Other revenues ...........................................................................................................................................................................................

Expenses

Finance costs ..................................................................................................................................................................................................
Staff expenses ...............................................................................................................................................................................................
Depreciation and amortization .............................................................................................................................................
Other operating expenses ...........................................................................................................................................................
Credit losses (recovered) / expense .................................................................................................................................
Provision for doubtful debts ......................................................................................................................................................
Impairment loses of investments in associates ...............................................................................................
Impairment losses of intangible assets ......................................................................................................................

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company ..........................................................................................................................
Non controlling interests ...............................................................................................................................................................
18

The attached notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Riham F. AlGhanim

Saleh Yacoub Al Humaizi

Vice Chairperson

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinars

Note

Net loss for the year ..............................................................................................................................................................................

Other comprehensive (losses) / income

Investments available for sale .................................................................................................................................................
Foreign currencies translation differences .............................................................................................................

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Allocated as follows:
Shareholders of the Parent Company ..........................................................................................................................
Non-controlling interes ...................................................................................................................................................................

24
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2011
2010

(8,250,678)
(69,367,482)

(1,166,259)
(111,405)
(9,528,342)
6,019,961
(266,831)
(63,614,352)

(9,119,074)
(409,268)
(9,528,342)
(54,932,306)
(8,682,046)
(63,614,352)

The attached notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Balance as of 31 December 2011

* Transferred to statement of
income on sale of investments
available for sale
* Change in fair value of investment
available for sale
* Impairment loss from
investments available for sale
* Foreign currencies translation
differences
* Total comprehensive loss for the
year
* Net loss for the year

Other comprehensive income items:

Balance as of 31 December 2010

Balance as of 31 December 2010

* Transferred to statement of
income on sale of investments
available for sale
* Change in fair value of investment
available for sale
* Impairment loss from
investments available for sale
* Foreign currencies translation
differences
* Total comprehensive income /
(loss) for the year
* Net loss for the year

Other comprehensive income items:

Equity restructure

Balance as of 31 December 2009

-

34,147,801

-

-

-

34,147,801

-

-

-

34,147,801

-

2,210,849
(2,210,849)

premium

-

41,930,970
(7,783,169)

Share capital

Share

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,948,771
(8,948,771)

reserve

Statutory

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,371,986
(6,371,986)

reserve

General

(565,037)

(1,143,756)

-

2,004,989

(3,378,793)

230,048

578,719

578,719

5,985,864

-

10,321,185

(6,150,722)

1,815,401

(5,407,145)
-

value reserve

Change in fair

130,781

(86,580)
(86,580)
1,209,312

130,781

1,295,892

-

130,781

1,295,892

-

-

(198,934)

-

-

(198,934)

-

-

-

-

-

1,494,826
-

-

130,781
-

reserve

-

reserve

translation

-

Equity
transactions

Foreign currency

The attached notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(10,945,477)

-

-

-

-

-

(10,945,477)

(10,945,477)

-

-

-

-

-

(10,945,477)
-

shares

Treasury

Equity attributable to the Parent Company›s shareholders

All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinars

(7,888,738)
(68,607,974)

-

-

-

-

-

(60,719,236)

(60,719,236)
(60,719,236)

-

-

-

-

-

(25,314,775)
25,314,775

losses

Accumulated

(7,888,738)
(44,630,594)

(1,230,336)

(86,580)

2,004,989

(3,378,793)

230,048

(35,511,520)

(60,719,236)
(35,511,520)

5,786,930

(198,934)

10,321,185

(6,150,722)

1,815,401

19,420,786
-

Total

(361,940)
2,990,796

(47,328)

(24,825)

-

(22,503)

-

3,400,064

(8,648,246)
3,400,064

(33,800)

(67,897)

-

29,510

4,587

12,082,110
-

Noncontrolling
interest

Total

(8,250,678)
(41,639,798)

(1,277,664)

(111,405)

2,004,989

(3,401,296)

230,048

(32,111,456)

(69,367,482)
(32,111,456)

5,753,130

(266,831)

10,321,185

(6,121,212)

1,819,988

31,502,896
-
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Note

Operating activities

Net loss for the year ..............................................................................................................................................................................
Adjustments for:
Losses from investments available for sale ............................................................................................................
,
Group,s share in associates results .................................................................................................................................
Finance costs ..................................................................................................................................................................................................
Depreciation and amortization .............................................................................................................................................
Impairment losses in property and equipment ..............................................................................................
Credit losses (recovered)/expense ....................................................................................................................................
Provision for doubtful debts ......................................................................................................................................................
Amortization of bond issue fees ..........................................................................................................................................
Impairment losses of investment in associates ...............................................................................................
Impairment losses of intangible assets .......................................................................................................................
Operating income / (loss) before changes in operating assets and liabilities ........
Finance receivables ...............................................................................................................................................................................
Investments at fair value through profit or loss ..............................................................................................
Other assets .....................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other liabilities .............................................................................................................................................................................................
Net cash generated from operating activities ...................................................................................................

16
10

8

Investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment .........................................................................................................................
Sale of property and equipment .........................................................................................................................................
Dividends received ................................................................................................................................................................................
Paid to acquire an associate .......................................................................................................................................................
Purchase of investments available for sale .............................................................................................................
Proceeds from sale of investments available for sale ...............................................................................
Fixed deposits mature within more than three months from the date of placement
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities ....................................................................

Financing activities

Borrowings settled .................................................................................................................................................................................
Finance costs paid ...................................................................................................................................................................................
Net cash used in from financing activities .............................................................................................................

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

6

2011

2010

(8,250,678)

(69,367,482)

1,579,091
538,460
5,918,665
324,464
159,002
(223,703)
196,974
242,275
13,545,495
616,606
271,726
(223,767)
14,452,335

8,789,762
3,410,511
6,931,330
516,442
7,348,139
1,374,205
6,208
10,135,785
13,672,009
(17,183,091)
8,912,124
22,470,913
(492,639)
(51,270)
13,656,037

(167,430)
110,769
654,757
(272,757)
(13,423,105)
16,462,288
(3,800,000)
(435,478)

(136,461)
144,354
433,290
(59,503)
(44,950,648)
46,195,833
1,626,865

(11,453,602)
(5,796,449)
(17,250,051)

(14,219,236)
(7,192,668)
(21,411,904)

(3,233,194)
10,154,474
6,921,280

(6,129,002)
16,283,476
10,154,474

The attached notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1- Incorporation and Activities
Kuwait Finance and Investment Company K.S.C. Closed (the Parent Company) is a Kuwaiti closed shareholding Company
incorporated in 29 March 2000 in accordance with Kuwait’s Commercial Companies Law No. 15 of 1960. The Parent Company
is regulated by the Central Bank of Kuwait (CBK) as an investment company practicing finance activity. It is also subject to the
supervision of the Capital Market Authority (CMA) as an investment company.
The Parent Company’s shares are listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange (KSE). On 1 April 2011, the Parent Company’s shares were
suspended from trading, and CMA granted the Parent Company a grace period till 31 March 2012 to restore its financial situation
and then to return the shares for re-trade.
The Parent Company›s registered office is at Arabia Tower, Sharq, P.O Box 21521, Safat 13037 Kuwait.
The Parent Company and its following subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) are principally engaged in consumer and
commercial financing activities, managing funds and portfolios on behalf of clients, investing in securities, brokerage activities
and providing financial and consulting services.

KFIC Financial Brokerage – K.S.C.C. ................................................................................
KFIC Private Equity Fund – Limited ................................................................................
Mutadawil Company – K.S.C.C. (established in May 2010) ............
Al Watheb for Management Consultancy – W.L.L. ...................................

Activity

Incorporation

Brokerage
Investment
Online trading
services
Consultancy

Kuwait
Cayman Island
Kuwait
Kuwait

Ownership (%)
2011

2010

99

99

94
66.97
-

94
66.97
92.4

The Parent Company’s investment in KFIC Financial Brokerage with a book value of KD 10,497,421 as of 31 December 2011 (KD
9,932,041 as of 31 December 2010) is pledged against the borrowings.
On 19 of April 2011, The Extraordinary General Assembly of Mutadawil Company (K.S.C.C.) has been held and decided to liquidate
the company. There is no effect on the Group’s financial statements as a result of this decision, as this subsidiary has not started
its operation yet.
These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 April 2012 and
are subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Parent Company in General Assembly.

2- Fundamental Accounting Concept
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Parent Company has incurred losses of KD 7,888,738 (KD 60,719,236 as of 31
December 2010). Furthermore, the Group’s liabilities exceeded its assets with an amount of KD 41,639,798 as of 31 December
2011 (KD 32,111,456 as of 31 December 2010). These conditions indicated an existence of a significant doubt about the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern as of 31 December 2011.
Subsequent to the financial position date, the Parent Company has taken the necessary steps to mitigate this significant doubt
about its ability to continue as a going concern where it has finalized the implementation of its debt restructure Plan, whereas, on
6 February 2012, the shareholders of the Parent Company in the Annual General Assembly meeting approved the capital increase
of KD 80 Million (note 15.1) and also approved the debt restructure Plan for the Parent Company that has been presented to its
creditors in year 2011. The main features of this debt restructure Plan is call for a capital increase by KD 80 Million from existing
shareholders and new shareholders (creditors), such capital increase will be used to repay portion from the debts while the
remaining portion of debts to be rescheduled on long term periods.
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2- Fundamental Accounting Concept ( Continued)

IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ (revised)

On 7 March 2012, the Parent Company’s Board of Directors has been held and resolved the call for the capital increase. An
amount of KD 65,173,638 has been collected which is more than the secured amount to be collected from such capital increase
amounting to KD 65 million as per the debt restructure Plan.

The amendment alters the definition of a financial liability to enable entities to classify rights issues and certain options or
warrants as equity instruments. The amendment is applicable when the rights are given pro rata to all of the existing owners to
acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount.
Improvements to IFRSs

3- Significant Accounting Policies
3.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted for use in the State of Kuwait for financial institutions regulated by the CBK. Those regulations require adoption of all
(IFRS) except for the International Accounting Standard ‘IAS 39’ requirements for collective provision, which has been replaced
by the CBK’s requirements for a minimum general provision as described in note (3.7).
The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars which is also the Parent Company’s functional and
presentation currency, and have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at «fair value through profit or loss» and «investments available for sale».
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3.2 Use of estimates in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

In May 2010, the IASB issued its third omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies
and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard. The adoption of the following amendments
resulted in changes to accounting policies and additional disclosers, but no impact on the financial statements or performance
of the Group.
. IFRS 3 Business Combinations

No impact of the amendment on the financial statements.
. IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The amendment was intended to simplify the disclosures provided by reducing the volume of disclosures around collateral held
and improving disclosures by requiring qualitative information to put the quantitative information in context. The Group reflects
the revised disclosure requirements in Note (23).

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported income, expenses, assets and liabilities which are recorded in the consolidated financial
statements and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the consolidated financial statements’ date. Use of available
information and application of judgment are inherent in the formation of estimates, which might lead to that the actual results
in the future could differ from such estimates.

. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The areas involving a high degree of judgment or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note (4).

.IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

3.3 Changes in accounting policies

The amendment clarifies that an entity may present an analysis of each component of other comprehensive income may be
either in the statement of change in equity or in the notes to the financial statement. The Group provided this analysis in the
statement of change in equity.

No impact of the amendment on the financial statements.

3.4 Basis of consolidation

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. There are some new and amended IFRS
recently issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) that are related to the Group activities to be applicable on financial statements prepared for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011. The implementation of the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations did
not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ (revised)

It clarified the definition of a related party to simplify the identification of such relationships and to eliminate inconsistencies in
its application. The revised standard introduces a partial exemption of disclosure requirements for government related entities.
The adoption of the amendment did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than 50% of voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.
Non-controlling interest in an acquiree is stated at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets at the acquisition date and the non-controlling interest’s share of changes in the equity since the date of the
combination. Equity and net income are attributed to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Non-controlling interest is presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of income. The non controlling interest is classified as a financial liability to the extent there
is an obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to settle the non controlling interest.
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3- Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.6 Cash and cash equivalents

3.4 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows include, cash on hand, cash at banks, term and demand
deposits with banks and financial institutions, whose original maturities do not exceed three months from the date of placements.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances based on latest audited financial statements or financial information of subsidiaries. Intra group transactions
are eliminated in full If a Parent Company loses control of a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost as well as related non controlling interests.
Any investment retained is recognized at fair value at the date when control is lost. Any resulting difference along with amounts
previously directly recognized in the equity is transferred to the consolidated statement of income.
Transactions with non controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non controlling interests which do not result in loss or a gain of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid
and the Parent Company’s share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity as “Equity
transactions reserve”. Gains or losses on disposals to non controlling interests that do not result to a loss of control are also
recorded in equity as “Equity transactions reserve”.

3.5 Business combinations

3.7 Financial instruments
Classification

The Group classifies its financial instruments upon initial recognition based on the purpose of acquiring these financial
instruments. The Group classifies its financial assets as “at fair value through profit or loss”, “loans and receivables”, “held to
maturity”, “investments available for sale”, or “financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss”.
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Investments at fair
value through profit or loss are reported in a separate line item in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Loans and receivables

Business combination is a process of combining separate entities into one entity in which the buyer obtains control over one
or more business. The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition is measured as the fair values of the assets given, equity interests issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of the exchange. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. The acquisition related costs are expensed when incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination (net assets acquired in a business combination) are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Non-controlling interest in the subsidiary acquired is recognized at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

Loans and receivables” are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, not classified as investments at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale, and are not those for which the
Group may not recover substantially all of its initial net investment, other than because of credit deterioration. The Group›s
loans and receivables comprise finance receivables which include: originated loans where money is provided directly to the
borrower, participation in a loan from another lender and purchased loans, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. The fair value
of the equity of the acquiree at the acquisition date is determined using valuation techniques and considering the outcome of
recent transactions for similar assets in the same industry in the same geographical region.

Held to maturity investments are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the
intention and ability to hold to maturity. As of 31 December 2011, the Group did not have held to maturity investments as part
from its financial assets.

The Group separately recognizes contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination if it is a present obligation that arises
from past events and its fair value can be measured reliably.
An indemnification received from the seller in a business combination for the outcome of a contingency or uncertainty related
to all or part of a specific asset or liability that is recognised at the acquisition date at its acquisition-date fair value is recognized
as an indemnification asset.
The Group uses provisional values for the initial accounting of a business combination and recognizes any adjustment to these
provisional values within the measurement period which is twelve months from the acquisition date.
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Held to maturity

Investments available for sale

Investments available for sale are non-derivatives financial assets that are either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified in any of the other categories. Available for sale investments are reported in a separate line item in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities “other than at fair value through profit or loss” are represented in bank overdraft, terms loans and bonds. Equity
interests are classified as financial liabilities if there is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset.
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3- Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value

3.7 Financial instruments (Continued)
Recognition and De-recognition

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A financial asset is de-recognized where: The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Group
retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay
to a third party under a “ pass through “ arrangement , or the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset
and either has transferred substation all the risks and rewards of the asset, or has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de recognition of the original liability and recognition
of a new liability.
All regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the financial instrument.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legal enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Group intends to settle on a net basis.
Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not classified at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated statement of income. Subsequently, available for sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are re-measured at fair value. Held to maturity investments and loans and receivables are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any provision for impairment losses.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category are
included in the consolidated statement of income in the period in which they arise. Changes in the fair value of monetary and
non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognized in equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analyzed between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortized cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. The translation
differences on monetary securities are recognized in profit or loss, while other changes are recognized in equity. When availablefor sale financial assets are sold or impaired, the accumulated changes in fair value recognized in equity are transferred to the
consolidated statement of income.
Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured
and carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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The fair value of quoted instruments is based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. Available for sale
investments whose fair value can not be reliably determined are recorded at cost less impairment. Details of the determination of
fair value of financial instruments, fair value hierarchy, valuation techniques and other related fair value disclosures are disclosed
in note (22).
Impairment of financial assets
Held to maturity investments and Loans and receivables

Provision for credit losses is established if there is objective evidence that the Group will be unable to collect all amounts due on
a loan according to the original contractual terms.
Objective evidence of impairment includes, for example, a significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization.
A provision for credit losses is reported as a reduction of the carrying value of a loan on the consolidated statement of financial
position. Additions to provisions for credit losses are made through credit losses expense.
Provisions for credit losses are evaluated based on the assumption that, a loan is considered impaired when management
determines that it is probable that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original contractual
terms. Individual credit exposures are evaluated based on the borrower’s character, overall financial condition, resources and
payment record, the prospects for support from any financially responsible guarantors and, where applicable, the realizable
value of any collateral (if any). The estimated recoverable amount is the present value, using the loan’s original interest rate, of
expected future cash flows, including amounts that may result from restructuring or the liquidation of collateral. Impairment is
measured and provisions for credit losses are established for the difference between the carrying amount and the estimated
recoverable amount.
Upon impairment, the accrual of interest income based on the original terms of the loan is discontinued, but the increase of the
present value of impaired loans due to the passage of time is reported as interest income.
All impaired loans are generally reviewed and analyzed at least annually. Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing
of the expected future cash flows compared with the prior estimates result in a change in the provision for credit losses and are
charged or credited to credit loss expense. A provision for impairment is reversed only when the credit quality has improved to
such an extent that there is reasonable assurance of timely collection of principal and interest in accordance with the original
contractual terms of the loan.
A write-off is made when all or part of a loan is deemed uncollectible or forgiven. Write-offs are charged against previously
established provisions for credit losses or directly to credit loss expense and reduce the principal amount of the loan.
Recoveries in part or in full of amounts previously written off are credited to credit loss expense.
A loan is classified as non-performing when the payment of interest, principal is overdue by more than 90 days and there
is no evidence that it will be made good by later payments or the liquidation of collateral, or insolvency proceedings have
commenced against the client
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3- Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.9 Goodwill and intangible assets

3.7 Financial instruments (Continued)
In addition, in accordance with (CBK) instructions, a minimum general provision of 1% is made on all loans (net of certain
restricted categories of collateral) that are not provided for specific provision.
Investments available for sale

In the case of financial asset classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of assets below its
cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available for sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognized in the consolidated statement of income, is removed from equity and recognized
in the consolidated statement of income.
Impairment losses on investment available for sale for equity instruments recognized in the consolidated statement of income
are not reversed through the consolidated statement of income. For debt instruments classified as available for sale, if in a
subsequent period, the fair value increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
statement of income.

3.8 Investments in associates
Associates are those entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. The excess of the cost of investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill on acquisition of associates
is included in the carrying values of investments in associates. Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost and are
subsequently accounted for by the equity method of accounting from the date of significant influence to the date it ceases.
Under the equity method, the Group recognises in the consolidated statement of income, its share of the associate’s post
acquisition results of operations and in equity, its share of post acquisition movements in reserves that the associate directly
recognises in equity. The cumulative post acquisition adjustments, and any impairment, are directly adjusted against the carrying
value of the associate. Appropriate adjustments such as depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses are made to the
Group’s share of profit or loss after acquisition to account for the effect of fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivable, the Group does not recognise further losses unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an additional impairment
loss on the Group’s investment in its associate. The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount as ‘Impairment
of investment in an associates’ in the consolidated statement of income.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of net identifiable assets of
the acquired entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arises in a business combination and is computed as the excess of the
aggregate of: the consideration transferred; the non-controlling interests proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable
assets, if any; and the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree, over the net of
the acquisition-date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Goodwill is not amortized, it is tested
yearly for impairment and, additionally, when a reasonable indication of impairment exists.
Gains and losses on disposal of an entity or a part of the entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity or
the portion sold.
Intangible assets comprise separately identifiable intangible items arising from business combinations and certain purchased
license and trademarks and similar items. Intangible assets with definite useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, while intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Subsequently intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortized using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful economic life, generally not exceeding 20 years, while intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life are not amortized and tested for impairment annually and recorded by cost less accumulated impairment losses.

3.10 Property and equipment
Property and equipment includes own-used properties, IT, software and communication and other machines and equipment.
Property and equipment is carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and is periodically
reviewed for impairment. Cost comprises of purchase cost and all directly attributable costs of brining the asset to working
conditions for its intended use. The useful life of property and equipment is estimated on the basis of the economic utilization
of the asset.

3.11 Impairment of non financial assets
Goodwill resulted from an acquisition of subsidiaries and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested at least annually
for impairment.
Assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows, known as cash generating units for
the purpose of assessing impairment of goodwill and intangible assets. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata, on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. The impairment related to goodwill cannot be reversed in a subsequent period.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. The Group prepares formal five year plans for its businesses. These plans are used for the value
in use calculation. Long range growth rates are used for cash flows into perpetuity beyond the five year period.
Fair value less costs to sell is determined using valuation techniques and considering the outcome of recent transactions for
similar assets in the same industry in the same geographical region.
If previously recognized impairment losses have decreased, such excess impairment provision is reversed for non financial assets
other than goodwill.

34

35

KUWAIT FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY – KSCC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

KUWAIT FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY – KSCC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinars unless otherwise stated

All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinars unless otherwise stated

3- Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fees which are considered an integral part of the effective yield of financial assets are recognized using effective interest rate
method.

3.12 Provisions for liabilities
Provisions for liabilities are recognized when the Group has a current or a future constructive obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle this obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated.

Fees income earned from services provided over a period of time is recognized over this time. Fees arising from providing a
transaction service are recognized on completion of the underlying transactions.
Portfolio and other management advisory services fees are recognized based on the applicable service contract which is usually
calculated on a time proportionate basis.

3.13 End of service benefits
The Group is liable under the Kuwait Labor Law to make payments under defined benefit plans to employees at termination of
employment. Defined benefit plan is un-funded and is based on the liability that would arise on involuntary termination of all
employees on the consolidated statement of financial position date. This basis is considered to be a reliable approximation of
the present value of the Group’s liability.

Dividends on equity instruments are recognized when the Group›s right to receive payment is established.
Commission on brokerage services are recognized as the service is provided.

3.14 Share capital and treasury shares

Finance costs on borrowings and other financial liabilities are recognized as expenses in the consolidated statement of income
using the effective interest rate method, unless the finance costs are related to qualified assets for capitalization, in which case
they are capitalized and considered part from the cost of the qualified assets till preparing these assets for use or sale.

Transaction costs related to share issuances

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new share or other instruments classified as equity instruments are
recognized in equity as “transaction costs related to share issuances”, and are a deduction from equity.

3.17 Finance costs

3.18 Earnings / (losses) per share
Basic earnings / (losses) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Treasury shares

The cost of the Parent Company’s own shares purchased, including directly attributable costs, is classified under equity. Gains or
losses arising on sale are separately disclosed under shareholders’ equity and these amounts are not available for distribution.
These shares are not entitled to cash dividends. The issue of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately
and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares. Reserves equal to the cost of treasury
shares held are not available for distribution.

3.15 Foreign currencies
The functional currency of the Group is the Kuwaiti Dinar, which is also the presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements. Foreign currency transactions are translated into Kuwaiti Dinars using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.
Net assets in foreign subsidiaries and associates are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position. Revenues and expenses of those entities are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
All resulting exchange differences are recognized in the foreign currency translation reserve in the equity.

3.16 Revenue recognition

Diluted earnings per share are calculated using the same method as for basic earnings per share and adjusting the net profit
for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to reflect
the potential dilution that could occur if options, warrants, convertible debt securities or other contracts to issue ordinary shares
were converted or exercised into ordinary shares.

3.19 Segment information
The Group’s businesses are organized into five business segments “Finance, Asset Management, Investment and Corporate
Finance, Brokerage and online trading, and Private Equity Fund”. These five business divisions were presented as five operating
segments in note (21).
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM).

3.20 Fiduciary assets
Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Group and accordingly are not included in these
consolidated financial statements.

Financing income is recognized as income on a time proportion basis so as to yield a constant periodic interest rate on the
balance outstanding based on the effective interest rate method. The recognition of financing income is suspended when loans
become impaired such as when overdue by more than 90 days.
36
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4- Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Accounting judgments

Recoverable amount is calculated based on the value in use or fair value less cost to sell whichever is higher. In estimating the
value in use, cash flows which are based on the associates’ business plans are discounted using the relevant discount rate and
the terminal value is calculated by estimating the terminal growth rates. In case of difficulty to obtain such information, the
recoverable amount is calculated based on the adjusted book value taking into consideration the market conditions and the
difficulties that may be faced by the investee. These involve high degree of estimates.

Classification of financial instruments

Fair value of unquoted equity investments

Management has to decide on acquisition of a financial instrument whether it should be classified as at fair value through
profit or loss or available for sale. In making that judgment the Group considers the primary purpose for which it is acquired
and how it intends to manage and report its performance. Such judgment determines whether the changes in fair value of
instruments are reported in the consolidated statement of income or directly in equity. The Group classifies its investments in
equity financial instrument as held for trading if principally acquired to generate shot term profits, other investments in equity
financial instrument are classified as investments available for sale.

Valuation techniques of unquoted equity investments is in which estimates are used representing the expected cash flows
discount rates, return trades, adjusted local market prices, credit risks, related cost and other valuation techniques used by the
participants in the market generally. The Group calibrates the valuation techniques periodically and tests these for validity using
either prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument or other available observable market data.

The followings are the areas involving a high degree of judgment or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements.

Evidence of impairment in investments available for sale

Management determines the impairment in equity instruments classified as available for sale when there is a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of these investments. Determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment
from management. The Group evaluates, among other factors, the usual fluctuation of listed stock prices, expected cash flows
and discount rates of unquoted investments, impairment is considered appropriate when there is objective evidence on the
deterioration of the financial position for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash flows.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, impairment loss amounting to KD2,004,989 for investments available for sale has
been recorded in the consolidated statement of income (KD 10,321,185 for the year ended 31 December 2010) note (9).

As of 31 December 2011, unquoted investments at fair value through profit or loss included investments of KD4,616,014
(KD 5,336,003 as of 31 December 2010) valued by using the adjusted net book value which included some estimates not
based on observable market data. The unrealized loss resulted from such investments is KD 673,549 has been recorded in the
consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2011 (KD 4,673,753 for the year ended 31 December 2010)
Note (7).
Impairment losses on loans and receivables

The Group reviews non performing loans on an ongoing basis to assess whether a provision for impairment should be
recorded in the consolidated statement of income as per the accounting policy Note (3.7). In particular, considerable judgment
by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of
provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving varying degrees of
judgment and uncertainty, and actual results may differ resulting in future changes to such provisions.

5- Standards issued but not yet effective

Estimation uncertainty

The Group determines assumptions relating to future. The outcomes of accounting estimation are rarely equal to the actual
results. Management undertakes these assumptions based on the information that has been available during the year, taking
into consideration the economical and political circumstances of the region. Estimations and assumptions that have material
impact attributable to adjustments affecting the carrying values of the assets and liabilities during the next financial year are as
follows:

New and revised IASB Standards, IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations related to the Group activities issued, but not yet effective

The following IASB Standards and IFRIC Interpretations relevant to the Group have been issued but are not yet mandatory, and
have not yet been early adopted by the Group:
IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Impairment in intangible assets

The Group calculates the recoverable amount for its intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives annually to determine
whether there is impairment should be recorded as per the accounting policy Note (3.11).

The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. It changes the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income. Items that could be reclassified (or ‘recycled’) to consolidated statement of income at
a future point in time (for example, upon de-recognition or settlement) would be presented separately from items that will never
be reclassified. The amendment affects presentation only and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

Recoverable amount is calculated based on the value in use. These involve high degree of estimates.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Enhanced De-recognition Disclosure Requirements
Impairment in associates

The Group calculates the recoverable amount for its investments in associates if there is an indication of an impairment to
determine whether there is any impairment should be recorded.
38

The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. The amendment requires additional
disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred but not derecognized to enable the user of the Group’s financial
statements to understand the relationship with those assets that have not been derecognized and their associated liabilities.
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5- Standards issued but not yet effective (Continued)
In addition, the amendment requires disclosures about continuing involvement in derecognized assets to enable the user
to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s continuing involvement in those derecognized assets. The
amendment affects disclosure only and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the IASBs work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets as defined in IAS 39. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB will address classification and measurement of financial liabilities, hedge accounting and
de-recognition. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets. The Group will quantify the effect of such phase in conjunction with the other phases, when issued, to determine
a comprehensive picture on the effect of such IFRS on the Group.
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. It replaces the portion of IAS 27
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also
includes the issue raised in SIC – 12 Consolidation Special Purpose Entities. The standard establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise
significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent,
compared with the requirements that were in IAS 27.

6- Cash at Banks
Cash at banks ...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Fixed deposits .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Less :
Fixed deposits-mature within more than three months from the date of placements ...........................
Cash and cash equivalents .........................................................................................................................................................................................................

2011

3,784,069
6,937,211
10,721,280
3,800,000
6,921,280

2010

10,020,470
134,004
10,154,474
10,154,474

- The fixed deposit duration is from three to six months and the average effective interest rate on fixed deposit is 1.39 % as
of 31 December 2011 (1.26 % as of 31 December 2010).
- As of 31 December 2011, cash and cash equivalents with an amount of KD 1,330,308 are pledged against the borrowings
(KD 3,640,789 as of 31 December 2010).

7- Investments at fair value through profit or loss

2011

Held for trading investments – quoted equity ................................................................................................................................................ 2,404,724
Designated at fair value at inception – quoted equity ......................................................................................................................... 720,395
Designated at fair value at inception – unquoted equity ................................................................................................................ 4,764,014
7,889,133

2010

1,932,842
1,291,383
5,336,003
8,560,228

- The fair value of quoted investments was determined based on year end bid price.
- The fair value of unquoted investments was determined using valuation techniques based on the adjusted book value of the
available data on such investments.

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)

As a consequence of the new IFRS 10 and IFRS 12, what remains of IAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities, and associates in separate financial statements. The Group does not present separate financial statements.
The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

As a consequence of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12; IAS 28 has been renamed IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”,
and describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates. The amendment
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Involvement with Other Entities

IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of
the disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and IAS 28. The standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013

- As of 31 December 2011, investments at fair value through profit or loss with an amount of KD 2,384,237 are pledged against
the borrowings (KD 1,902,812 as of 31 December 2010).

8- Finance receivables

2011

Gross receivables ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 43,583,564
Less: deferred income ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (1,881,162)
41,702,402
Less: provision for credit losses ............................................................................................................................................................................................. (10,575,978)
31,126,424

2010

57,855,033
(2,607,136)
55,247,897
(10,799,681)
44,448,216

- As of 31 December 2011, finance receivables of KD 18,897,217 (KD 20,767,662 as of 31 December 2010) were impaired and
provided for. The amount of the provision was KD 10,348,857 (KD 10,455,474 as of 31 December 2010).
- As of 31 December 2011, finance receivables of KD 20,818,610 (KD 29,408,533 as of 31 December 2010) were fully performing.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. IFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but
rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted.
These standards, amendments and interpretations will be made in the financial statements when these standards, amendments
and interpretations become effective.
40

- Installments of finance receivables that are past due for less than three months are not considered impaired. The total amount
of the finance receivables whose some of its installments are past due but not impaired is KD 1,986,575 as of 31 December 2011
(KD 5,071,702 as of 31 December 2010).
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8- Finance receivables (Continued)

- The fair value of unquoted investments was determined using other valuation techniques.

- Finance receivables of KD 1,986,575 as of 31 December 2011 (KD 5,071,702 as of 31 December 2010) included installments of
KD 267,044 are past due for three months (KD 571,117 as of 31 December 2010) and not considered impaired.

- During the year, the Group has recorded in the consolidated statement of income an impairment loss of KD 2,004,989 for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (KD 10,321,185 as of 31 December 2010) for certain available for sale investments which had a
significant or prolonged decline in value.

- Following is aging of finance receivables installment which are past due but not impaired:

2011

One month ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
More than one month till two months .....................................................................................................................................................................
More than two months till three months ..............................................................................................................................................................

162,404
73,436
31,204
267,044

2010

310,847
186,007
74,263
571,117

- The fair value of collaterals held against finance receivables is KD 71,862,304 as of 31 December 2011 (KD 85,365,264 as of
31 December 2010).
- The fair value of finance receivables as of 31 December 2011 is KD 32,046,990 (KD 52,063,745 as of 31 December 2010) by
using current discount market rates prevailing at the consolidated financial statements date.
- The movements on provision for credit losses are as follows:

Balance as at 1 January 2010 ..............................................................................................

Provision no longer required ...................................................................................................................
Amounts charged during the year ..................................................................................................
Net provision movement during the year .............................................................................

Balance as at 31 December 2010 .................................................................................

Provision no longer required ...................................................................................................................
Amounts charged during the year ..................................................................................................
Net provision movement during the year .............................................................................

Balance as at 31 December 2011 ..................................................................................

Specific
provision

General
provision

Total

2,854,349
(351,931)
7,953,056
7,601,125
10,455,474
(1,331,639)
1,225,022
(106,617)
10,348,857

597,193
(491,541)
238,555
(252,986)
344,207
(264,343)
147,257
(117,086)
227,121

3,451,542
(843,472)
8,191,611
7,348,139
10,799,681
(1,595,982)
1,372,279
(223,703)
10,575,978

9- Investments available for sale

- The fair value of quoted investments was determined based on year end bid prices.
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2011

9,737,852
2,023,102
11,760,954

10- Investments in associates
Name
Arabian Capital Investment & Finance ..................
Salbookh Trading Company ...............................................
Arab Finance House Holding ............................................

Legal form

Incorporation Ownership

KSCC
KSCC
SAL

Kuwait
Kuwait
Lebanon

2010

1,098,788
5,150,744
2,249,815
8,499,347

1,227,273
5,030,274
2,507,925
8,765,472

- As of 31 December 2011, an investment in Salbookh Trading Company with an amount of KD 5,150,744 is pledged against the
borrowings (KD 2,061,124 as of 31 December 2010).
- 740,000 shares of Arab Finance House Holding S.A.L represents 21% of the Group’s investment in this associate are recorded in
the name of one of the Gulf Financial institutions as a representative of the Group, as per the signed agreements between the
Parent Company and that institution, in order to comply with the regulatory requirements for banking institutions in Lebanon.
- The following is the Group›s share in the assets, liabilities, revenues and results of associates in accordance with their latest
available financial statements.

Name

2011
Assets Liabilities Revenues
3,476,387
1,744,989
4,476,748

2010

15,703,896
2,552,842
18,256,738

24.49%
27.39%
29.17%

2011

- The Group has recorded its share in results of Arab Finance House Holding (S.A.L.) based on latest drafted audited financial
statement for the year ended 31 December 2011, also the Group has recorded its share in results of Salbookh Trading Company KSCC based on the latest reviewed financial information as of 30 September 2011, while the Group’s share from results of Arabian
Capital Investment & Finance - KSCC has been recorded based on the unaudited draft financial information for the period ended
as of 30 September 2011

Arabian Capital Investment & Finance - KSCC ..................................... 4,575,175
Salbookh Trading Company - KSCC ................................................................... 6,895,733
Arab Finance House Holding - SAL .................................................................... 6,726,563

- The effective interest rate on finance receivables is 5.26% as of 31 December 2011 (6 % as of 31 December 2010).

Quoted equity .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Unquoted equity .....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

- As of 31 December 2011, investments available for sale with an amount of KD 7,231,860 are pledged against the
borrowings (KD 12,718,510 as of 31 December 2010).

Name

131,177
77,909
709,858

Net loss Fair Value
(128,546)
(180,155)
(229,759)

Unquoted
2,691,480
Unquoted

2010
Assets Liabilities Revenues

Arabian Capital Investment & Finance - KSCC ..................................... 9,315,794
Salbookh Trading Company - KSCC ................................................................... 6,479,939
Arab Finance House Holding - SAL .................................................................... 13,446,646
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2,939,177
1,449,665
5,952,280

(477,379)
16,132
74,641

Net loss Fair Value
(843,237)
(1,030,612)
(1,536,662)

Unquoted
3,746,340
Unquoted
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11- Other assets

13- Borrowings

Kuwait Clearing Company ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other receivables ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Accrued income .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Prepayments .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Contribution in brokerage guarantee fund .........................................................................................................................................................

2011

42,003
106,761
460,081
343,540
250,000
1,202,385

2010

112,407
355,442
188,364
764,872
250,000
1,671,085

Bank overdrafts ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Term loans ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Bonds ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

2011

2,842,260
95,964,000
21,500,000
120,306,260

2010

6,669,480
103,590,382
21,500,000
131,759,862

- Term loans have been obtained from financial institutions, with an average interest rate of 4.60% as of 31 December 2011 (5.03%
as of 31 December 2010).

- Accrued income mainly represents portfolio management fee due from clients and funds managed by the Parent Company.
- During the year, the Group has studied the recoverable value of other assets, which resulted to recording provision for doubtful
debts with an amount of KD 196,974 (KD 1,374,205 as of 31 December 2010).

12- Intangible assets
Balance as of 1 January

Brokerage License .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Key Money .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

2011

2010

9,057,299
9,057,299

22,729,308
9,933
22,739,241

9,057,299

(13,672,009)
(9,933)
(13,681,942)
9,057,299

Less:

Impairment in Brokerage License .....................................................................................................................................................................................
Amortization of Key Money ......................................................................................................................................................................................................
Balance as of 31 December ......................................................................................................................................................................................................

The Group has tested the impairment of the Brokerage license and the test did not indicate the necessity to record impairment
in the current year (2010: KD 13,672,009). The recoverable amount is determined using a discounted cash flow model, which uses
inputs that consider features of the brokerage business and its regulatory environment. The recoverable amount is calculated by
estimating streams of earnings available to shareholders over the next five years, discounted to their present values. The terminal
value reflecting all periods beyond the fifth year is calculated on the basis of the forecast of fifth-year profit, the average cost of
equity is 9% (2010 : 11.2%) and the long-term growth rate 3% (2010 : 3%). The model used to determine the recoverable amount
is most sensitive to changes in the forecast earnings available to shareholders in years one to five, the cost of equity and to
changes in the long-term growth rate. The applied long-term growth rate is based on real growth rates and expected inflation.
Earnings available to shareholders are estimated on the basis of forecast results, which take into account business initiatives and
planned capital investments. Valuation parameters used within the Group’s impairment test model are linked to external market
information, where applicable.
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- Due to the deteriorations in the financial situation of the Parent Company, the Parent Company’s Board of directors during the
year has approved presenting to its lenders a restructure plan (the Plan) to restructure all the Group’s debts. As per the plan, a
call for a capital increase by KD 80 Million from existing shareholders and new shareholders (creditors) should take place, where
the capital increase to be used to settle portion from the debts and the remaining portion to be scheduled for repayments over
the next five years. The restructure plan includes some terms, the most important terms in out of which, are a commitment from
the major shareholders to subscribe in such capital increase with a minimum amount of KD 15 million and consent from the
bondholders to participate in the debt restructure plan.
- During 2012, all the creditors’ banks and the bondholder representative signed on the final agreement of debt restructure Plan.
As per the debt restructure Plan, the debts will be reduced from KD 120.3 million approximately to KD 40.5 million approximately
and to be rescheduled on 5 years with an interest rate of 0.75% above the CBK discount rate, to be increased yearly to reach to
3% by the end of year 2016.

14- Other liabilities
Due to suppliers and others .....................................................................................................................................................................................................
Employees’ end of service benefits ...............................................................................................................................................................................
Accrued expenses and other payables .....................................................................................................................................................................

2011

702,534
418,145
906,125
2,026,804

2010

899,472
320,634
908,249
2,128,355

15- Equity
15.1 Share Capital
Issued capital

2011

Capital (KD) .............................................................................................................................................
Capital (Shares) ..................................................................................................................................
Nominal value (fils) ......................................................................................................................

54,147,801
541,478,014
100
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2010

54,147,801
541,478,014
100

Paid capital

2011

34,147,801
341,478,014
100

2010

34,147,801
341,478,014
100
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15- Equity (Continued)

16- Investment losses

15.1 Share Capital (Continued)
On 6 February 2012, the General and Extraordinary Assembly meetings of the Parent Company have approved the Board of
Director’s recommendation as follows:
- Cancelling the capital increase of KD 20,000,000 that has been approved earlier by the shareholders on 16 June 2010.
- Issuing 300,000,000 shares with 100 fils per share and without share premium to be allocated to the existing shareholders at the
date of the General Assembly meeting.

Investments available for sale:

Cash dividends ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Impairment losses .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(Loss) / gain on sale .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Investments at fair value through profit or loss:

Cash dividends ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Change in fair value .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Loss on sale .....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

- Issuing 500,000,000 shares with 100 fils per share and without share premium to be allocated to new shareholders with a waiver
from existing shareholders for their right to subscribe in this capital increase in favor of the new shareholders.
On 7 March 2012, The Parent Company has authenticated the above changes in the Commercial Register, accordingly, the Parent
Company’s issued capital has become KD 114,147,801 distributed over 1,141,478,014 shares with a nominal value of 100 fils per
share.
On 7 March 2012, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company has been held and resolved the call for the capital increase and
an amount of KD 65,173,638 has been collected which will be used in repayments of portion from the debts as per the debt
restructure plan.

15.2 Statutory reserve
As required by the Commercial Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the net profit for
the year before contribution to Kuwait Foundation for Advancement of sciences, directors’ remuneration, and National Labour
Support Tax and Zakat expense should be transferred to the statutory reserve. The Parent Company may resolve to discontinue
such annual transfers when it exceeds 50% of the share capital. Distribution of this reserve is limited to the amount required
to enable the payment of a dividend of 5% of paid up share capital in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the
payment of a dividend of that amount. There is no transfer to statutory reserve in the current year due to losses.

15.3 General reserve
In accordance with Kuwait Commercial Companies Law and the Parent Company›s Article of Association, the Board of Directors
may propose appropriation from net profit to the general reserve. Due to losses, no such appropriation is proposed.

15.4 Treasury shares

2011

2010

654,757
(2,004,989)
(228,859)
(1,579,091)

433,290
(10,321,185)
1,098,133
(8,789,762)

203,397
(1,226,588)
(203,411)
(1,226,602)
(2,805,693)

150,398
(17,498,709)
(335,910)
(17,684,221)
(26,473,983)

17- Other operating expenses
General, administrative and marketing expenses ......................................................................................................................................
Commissions and brokerage expenses ....................................................................................................................................................................
Consulting fees ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Restructuring fees ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Bad debts and provisions ............................................................................................................................................................................................................
Impairments loss in the value of property and equipment ..........................................................................................................

2011

891,736
173,647
254,469
337,153
453,886
159,002
2,269,893

2010

1,453,555
542,258
337,418
230,949
842,038
3,406,218

During the year, the recoverable amount for the property and equipment has been determined based on the fair value. This has
resulted to an impairment loss of KD 159,002 representing the difference between the recoverable amount and net book value
of property and equipment as of 31 December 2011.

18- Losses per share
Net loss for the year attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company ...............................................................
Weighted average number of outstanding shares during the year (share) .............................................................
Losses per share (fils) ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................

2011

(7,888,738)
313,524,814
(25.16)

2010

(60,719,236)
313,524,814
(193.67)

19- Other comprehensive income
2011

Number of shares (share) ............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 27,953,195
8.19
% to the share capital ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
726,783
Market value ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

2010

27,953,195
8.19
964,385

During the year no sale or purchase of treasury shares has taken place.
The Parent Company does not have reserves and retained earning against the cost of treasury shares due to reasons disclosed
in note (2).
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Following if the breakdown of other comprehensive income for investments available for sale :

Change in fair value .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Impairment loss from investments available for sale .............................................................................................................................
Transferred to statement of income from sale of investments available for sale .............................................

47

2011

(3,401,296)
2,004,989
230,048
(1,166,259)

2010

(6,121,212)
10,321,185
1,819,988
6,019,961

4,075,522
(8,915,696)
(4,840,174)

21- Segment Information
The Group’s main activity is organized and managed through four major segments. Segment results are reported to the executive
management of the Group. The revenues, profit, assets and liabilities are measured in accordance with the same accounting
policies used in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Finance

Financial brokerage and online trading

This segment provides the brokerage and on line trading services for the clients.
KFIC Privare Equity Fund

This represents a subsidiary which has direct equity stakes in companies operate in Middle East Areas.
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Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities

Unallocated expenses
Net loss

Segment results
Allocated expenses

2010

This segment monitors the Group’s direct investments and also provides consultancy services for clients.

2011

Investment and corporate finance

Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities

This segment provides services of portfolio management and custody services for clients.

Unallocated expenses
Net loss

Asset management

Segment results
Allocated expenses

This segment provides consumer loans to individuals and commercial loans to corporate entities and individual customers

Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified to be in consistent with current year presentation for the segment information where to report segment information with the same
base used for the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

422,043
47,767
560,486
298,739
799,320

92,423,617
9,353,144
101,776,761
2,128,355
131,759,862
133,888,217
11,349,459
9,144,209
26,240,665
639,723
45,049,561

(23,154,260)
(39,281,892)
(62,436,152)
(6,931,330)
(69,367,482)
2,033,549
(2,657,836)
(624,287)
(18,594,258)
(5,020,860)
(23,615,118)
(11,581,465)
(21,062,342)
(32,643,807)
912,392
(1,625,158)
(712,766)

265,111

2,001,170
(4,333,183)
(2,332,013)
(5,918,665)
(8,250,678)

71,086,825
9,606,441
80,693,266
2,026,804
120,306,260
122,333,064
7,055

2010

58,924,439

Finance

2011

828,316

25,905,295

80,681

Investments and funds managed in a fiduciary capacity .................................................................................................................

845,641

953,680

10,717,110

306,346

7,790,136

Salaries and other short term benefits .......................................................................................................................................................................

Key management compensation:

20,658,599

2010

308,825
527,333
-

651,380

2011

128,727
589,036
83,895

Management fees earned ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest income .........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Revenue consulting services ...................................................................................................................................................................................................

31,269,600

Transactions with parties related to the Board of Directors

12,109,883
-

1,756,051
(1,202,813)
553,238

7,732,758
62,549

(1,213,187)
(14,818)
(1,228,005)

Finance receivables balances .................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other Liabilities .........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

2,408,884
(1,085,723)
1,323,161

Parties related to the Board of Directors

(2,016,528)
(1,011,955)
(3,028,483)

Amount (KD)
2011
2010

1,065,950
(1,017,874)
48,076

The related parties’ transactions included in the consolidated financial statement are as follows:

Financial
brokerage and
online trading

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and entities jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. All related party transactions are carried out on terms approved by Group
management.

KFIC Private
Equity Fund

20- Related parties’ transactions

Investment and
corporate finance

All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinars unless otherwise stated

Asset
management
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22- Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.
Fair values are determined from quoted prices in active markets where these instruments are available. Fair value of a financial
asset or financial liability in an active market is the current bid price times the number of units of the instrument held. Where
the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is established using a valuation technique or pricing models. These
valuation techniques and models involve a degree of estimation, the extent of which depends on the instrument’s complexity
and the availability of market-based data. Valuation adjustments may be made to allow for additional factors including risk
models, liquidity risk and credit risk. Based on the estimated fair value and model governance policies and related controls and
procedures applied, management believes that these valuation adjustments are necessary and appropriate to fairly state the
values of financial instruments carried at fair value on the consolidated statement of financial position.
When entering into a transaction where model inputs are not market observable, the financial instrument is initially recognized
at the transaction price, which is generally the best indicator of fair value.
Fair values of all financial instruments are not materially different from their carrying values. For financial assets and financial
liabilities that are liquid or having a short-term maturity (less than three months), the carrying amount approximates their fair
value.
The assumptions used to determine the fair value of the financial instruments are disclosed in the accounting policy note (3.7).

31 December 2011
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Equity shares ...............................................................................................................................................

Investments available for sale

Equity shares ...............................................................................................................................................
Investments in funds .......................................................................................................................

31 December 2010
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Equity shares ...............................................................................................................................................

Investments available for sale

Equity shares ...............................................................................................................................................
Investments in funds .......................................................................................................................

Financial instruments classified as held for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss, and financial assets
classified as available for sale are recognized in the financial statements at fair value.
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:
Level 1: Quoted prices in active market for the same instrument.
Level 2: Quoted prices in active market for similar instruments from Funds’ managers or other valuation techniques for which all

significant inputs are based on observable market data either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Valuation techniques which include significant inputs that are not based on observable market data.

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total fair
value

3,125,119
3,125,119

147,500
147,500

4,616,514
4,616,514

7,889,133
7,889,133

9,737,852
9,737,852

1,914,857
1,914,857

108,245
108,245

9,846,097
1,914,857
11,760,954

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total fair
value

3,224,225
3,224,225

-

5,336,003
5,336,003

8,560,228
8,560,228

15,703,896
15,703,896

2,406,187
2,406,187

146,655
146,655

15,850,551
2,406,187
18,256,738

23- Financial risk management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, price risk, in addition to credit risk and liquidity risk.
Market risk is being subdivided into foreign currency risk, equity price risk, interest rate risk and prepayment risk. The Group’s
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group has Risk Management department whereby risks are identified, measured and monitored. Following is the general
framework of the risk management policies applied in the Group.
Risk management structure
Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company is responsible for developing the overall risk management framework, and
approving risk management strategies.
Risk management and reporting system
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Monitoring of risks is managed through reports provided by risk management department and through limits set by the Board
of Directors. These limits reflect the Group’s business strategy and market conditions and the environment in which the Group
is operating.
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23- Financial risk management (Continued)

(ii) Equity price risk

23.1 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market variables such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual investment or
its issuer or factors affecting all investments traded in the market.
(i) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures mainly, US Dollar, United Arab Emirates Dirham,
Saudi Riyal and Qatari Riyal.
The Group’s exposure to this risk is limited as the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are not material to
the financial statements taken as a whole.
The Group monitors foreign currency exposure on an ongoing basis so appropriate decisions are taken to minimize the exposure
to a specific currency when required.
Had the exchange rate of the following currencies increased with 5% against the Kuwaiti Dinar, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s net income and equity would have been shifted by the following amounts:

2011
Description

2010

Impact on the
consolidated
statement of income

Impact on
equity

Impact on the
consolidated
statement of income

Impact on
equity

318,353
1,102
3,181

154,295
125,300
-

(51,333)
5,263
17,392

176,756
149,269
-

USD ...........................................................................................
UAD ..........................................................................................
Others ...................................................................................

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities will fluctuate as a result of changes in the level of equity indices or the
value of the individual share prices. The Group is exposed to price risk arising from investments that are classified as “available for
sale”, or “at fair value through profit or loss”.
To manage this risk, the Group diversifies its investments in various segments and markets to avoid concentration risk.
Furthermore, the Group has its own policies in terms of studying and evaluating investment opportunities. These policies are
implemented through the authority matrix approved by the Board of Directors.
For unquoted investments, the Group prepares on a regular basis studies to determine whether there is impairment in value of
these investments.
The table below summarizes the impact of an increase in the various stock exchange indexes on the Group’s net loss for the year
and on equity. The following analysis is based on the assumption that the equity indexes would increase by 10% with all other
variables held constant.

Impact on the consolidated
statement of income
Description
Kuwait stock exchange .........................
Dubai stock exchange ............................
Jordan market ....................................................
Others ..........................................................................
Total ................................................................................

Impact on Equity

2011

2010

2011

2010

353,318
10,556
1,388
365,262

340,921
20,631
940
362,492

855,043
250,599
1,105,642

1,591,253
301,524
1,892,777

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in cash flows resulting from changes in interest rates through borrowings
bear floating interest rates. The Group manages this risk by monitoring the changes in the interest rates and studying the effects
on its cash flows.
Had interest rates increased by 5%, the net loss would have increased by the KD 295,933 for the year ended 31 December 2011
(KD 346,566 as of 31 December 2010).

Net position of major currencies

Surplus (deficit) 2011

Surplus (deficit) 2010

(iv) Prepayment risk

USD

SRA

UAD

QR

OTHERS

9,452,953

10,820

2,528,041

29,102

23,695

USD

SAR

UAD

QR

Others

2,508,472

14,378

3,090,642

98,988

234,480
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Prepayment risk is the risk that the Group will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or request
earlier to repay loans for example for loans which have fixed interest rate during the periods of whiteness declining in interest
rate. The Group is not significantly exposed to prepayment risk.
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23- Financial risk management (Continued)

Credit risk measurement

23.2 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counter party will cause a financial loss to the Group by failing to discharge an obligation. Assets that
are exposed to credit risk are cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, and finance receivables.

The Group measures credit risk in terms of asset quality using two primary measures – the provisioning ratio and the non
performing finance receivables ratio.
Definitions of past due and impaired loans

The Group manages the credit risk related to cash, and deposits at banks through dealing with local and foreign financial
institutions, which have a good credit reputation, while for the finance receivables, the Group established credit policies to
mitigate the credit risk of the finance receivable. These policies are approved by the Parent Company’s Board of Directors.

The following classification of credit exposures is considered by the Group for identifying impaired credit facilities.

Credit risk management framework

No of days past due

The Group placed credit policy to define the criteria of credit granting process. The Board of Directors approved this credit policy.
Any amendment to that policy has to be approved from the Board of Directors. Furthermore, Credit committees have been
formed to decide on granting loans process.

Classification

More than 30 days but not exceeding 90 days ...........................................................................................................................................................................................
More than 90 days but not exceeding 180 days .......................................................................................................................................................................................
More than 180 days but not exceeding 365 days ...................................................................................................................................................................................
More than 365 days ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Watch list
Substandard
Doubtful
Bad

Collateral

Finance receivables are secured against investments in quoted and unquoted securities and real estate. Management monitors
the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement, and monitors the
market value of collateral obtained during its review of the adequacy of the provision for credit losses.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the consolidated statement of financial statement date is the carrying values of the
financial assets recorded in the consolidated financial statement that are subject to credit risk without taking any collateral into
consideration.

The Group classifies its customers according to risk exposure as the following:

23.3 Liquidity risk

- High Quality: Regular exposures with a normal risk covered fully by collateral in excess of 100% of the amount outstanding.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its financial liabilities when they fall due.

- Standard Quality: All other regular exposures where the collateral does not fully cover the amount outstanding.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. To provide liquidity, the Group provided various funding sources,
and managing its assets to provide the required liquidity and monitoring the cash flows on regular basis. This requires an
estimate of the future cash flows and guarantees the sufficient collaterals to obtain the required facility in the reasonable time
when required.

- The following is the degree of exposure to the credit risk for the finance receivables that are:

Neither past due nor impaired
2011
Finance receivables:

Commercial finance ..........................................................................................................................

2010
Finance receivables:

Consumer finance ................................................................................................................................
Commercial finance ...........................................................................................................................

High qualitiy

Medium qualitiy

Total

16,472,194
16,472,194

2,308,472
2,308,472

18,780,666
18,780,666

8,156
25,695,094
25,703,250

8,713
2,612,729
2,621,442

16,869
28,307,823
28,324,692

As per the debt restructure plan that has been signed with the creditors’ banks and the bondholder representative, the debt will
be reduced by an amount of KD 65 Million through the purposed capital increase for the creditors and existing shareholders
which will result to a decrease in the debts and its related finance cost during the next five year. The debt restructure plan has
been executed and the call for the capital increase has been finalized during 2012.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the consolidated financial statements. Balances due within 12 months from consolidated financial statements equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

As of 31 December 2011, the finance receivables which are fully covered by collateral are 40% (47% as of 31 December 2010) of
the total balance of the finance receivables.
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23- Financial risk management (Continued)
23.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Maturity profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2011:

23.4 Capital risk management

Assets

Cash at banks ........................................................
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss ..............................
Finance receivables ......................................
Investments available for sale ........
Investments in associates ....................
Other assets ............................................................
Property and equipment ......................
Intangible assets ...............................................

Liabilities

Bank overdrafts ...................................................
Term loans ................................................................
Bonds ..............................................................................
Other liabilities ....................................................

Up to 3
month

3-6
months

6 months
– 1 year

1 – 3 years

Over 3
years

Total

9,849,122

872,158

-

-

-

10,721,280

12,549,660
501,871
22,900,653

6,229,008
7,101,166

7,889,133
10,282,891
136,184
18,308,208

1,884,635
11,760,954
8,499,347
314,330
436,444
22,895,710

180,230
250,000
9,057,299
9,487,529

7,889,133
31,126,424
11,760,954
8,499,347
1,202,385
436,444
9,057,299
80,693,266

23,029
777,571
174,209
443,502
1,418,311

23,029
11,777,577
174,209
11,974,815

46,564
52,334,439
21,852,247
798,992
75,032,242

3,041,052
35,437,678
784,310
39,263,040

-

3,133,674
100,327,265
22,200,665
2,026,804
127,688,408

The above maturity analysis for the liabilities has been prepared based on the outstanding liabilities as of 31 December 2011
without taking into consideration the effect of implementing the debt restructure plan during 2012.
Maturity profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2010:

Assets

Cash at banks ........................................................
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss ..............................
Finance receivables ......................................
Investments available for sale ........
Investments in associates ....................
Other assets ............................................................
Property and equipment ......................
Intangible assets ...............................................

Liabilities

Bank overdrafts ...................................................
Term loans ................................................................
Bonds ..............................................................................
Other liabilities ....................................................

The Parent Company›s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. To maintain or change, the Parent Company may adjust the
dividends paid to the shareholders, or return the capital, or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce its debts. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, as followed by the other Companies in the same business, the Group monitors capital on the basis
of gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net debt.
During the year, and due to the extra ordinary and unexpected events in the global and regional economy, the gearing ratio of
the Group has been affected significantly by the severe decline in the equity markets which in turn resulted in a severe decline
in the equity of the Group. Subsequent to the financial position date the Group management - restored the gearing ratio to 55%
through the debt restructure Plan which included converting portion from the debts to equity through the capital increase.
The gearing ratio is as follows:

Total borrowings .........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(Less) Cash at banks ................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Net debt ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total equity ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total capital .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Gearing ratio ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

24- Fiduciary assets

Up to 3
month

3-6
months

6 months
– 1 year

1 – 3 years

Over 3
years

Total

10,084,877

-

69,597

-

-

10,154,474

19,623,956
304,800
30,013,633

7,625,635
7,625,635

8,560,228
8,234,644
302,679
17,167,148

8,743,464
18,256,738
8,765,472
813,606
863,249
37,442,529

220,517
250,000
9,057,299
9,527,816

8,560,228
44,448,216
18,256,738
8,765,472
1,671,085
863,249
9,057,299
101,776,761

77,275
27,885,956
238,562
562,161
28,763,954

78,195
4,630,094
241,212
200,000
5,149,501

158,109
7,336,389
487,726
1,065,310
9,047,534

628,139
59,448,156
22,470,151
300,884
82,847,330

6,726,755
19,216,020
25,942,775

7,668,473
118,516,615
23,437,651
2,128,355
151,751,094
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2011

2010

120,306,260
(10,721,280)
109,584,980
(41,639,798)
67,945,182
161.28%

131,759,862
(10,154,474)
121,605,388
(32,111,456)
89,493,932
135.88%

As of 31 December 2011, portfolios under Parent Company’s management amounted to KD 221,935,960 (KD 342,919,882 as of
31 December 2010).
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